
 

     MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS ON MONDAY, FEBRUARY 9, 2004, AT 7:00 P.M. 

 
Members present: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. 

Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett 
 
Members absent: None 
 
Others present: Town Manager C. Wayne Sutherland, Jr., Assistant Town Manager 

Stephen A. Moore, Town Clerk Sharon P. Hackler, Patrol Officer Chris 
Irvin, Danny Gordon with WYVE/WXBX, Stephanie Porter-Nichols with 
Wytheville Enterprise, Amanda Gordon, Brandon Bentley, Jack Kaylor, 
Jeanette Kaylor, Agnes Eades, Frankie Scott  

 
RE:  CALL TO ORDER, QUORUM, INVOCATION, PLEDGE 
 
Mayor Crewe called the meeting to order and established that a quorum of Council members 
was present. The invocation was given by Councilman Crockett followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance led by Councilman Weisiger. 
 
RE:  CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Mayor Crewe presented the consent agenda consisting of the minutes of the regular meeting of 
January 26, 2004. A motion was made by Vice-Mayor King and seconded by Councilman 
Weisiger to approve the consent agenda consisting of the minutes of the regular meeting of 
January 26, 2004. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on the motion. There being 
none, the motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: 
For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. Weisiger, Charles 
G. Crockett. Against: None. 
 
RE: PUBLIC HEARING – NONCONFORMING STRUCTURES 
 
Mayor Crewe stated the meeting constituted a public hearing (due notice having been given) to 
consider amending the Town of Wytheville Zoning Ordinance, Article VII-Residential District R-
2, and Article VIII-Residential District R-3 to include an amended side yard setback for 
nonconforming structures on developed lots platted prior to 1969 in R-2 Residential and R-3 
Residential Districts. He remarked that the proposal is to relax these requirements so as to 
allow structures in the side yards in R-2 Residential and R-3 Residential lots that were platted 
prior to 1969 when the Zoning Ordinance went into effect. Mayor Crewe inquired if there are 
persons present to address the Council during the public hearing. There being none, he 
declared the public hearing closed. He noted if someone arrives later and wishes to address the 
Council, he will allow them the opportunity to speak. Mayor Crewe indicated that the Council will 
vote on this matter later on the agenda.  
 
RE: CITIZENS’ PERIOD 
 
Mayor Crewe stated the next agenda item is Citizens’ Period. He inquired if there are persons 
present who wish to address Council during Citizens’ Period. There being none, he proceeded 
with the agenda.  
 
RE: OLD BUSINESS 
 
There was no old business to be reported.  
 
RE:  BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Councilman Jones, reporting for the Budget and Finance Committee, stated that this week, the 
Committee reviewed several proposed amendments to the Town’s Personnel Regulations. He 
advised that with two exceptions, all of the revisions proposed are merely housekeeping in 
nature and make the Personnel Regulations easier to use. Councilman Jones stated that one of 
the major chapters in the Personnel Regulations deals with employee safety and the safety 
standards under which the Town operates. He explained that in its current form, the section on 
safety standards makes references to a number of appendices at the rear of the policy. He 
remarked that this format makes it cumbersome to easily use the policy. Councilman Jones 
advised that as such, the Committee is proposing that these appendices not be separated from 
the policy, but merely incorporated into the specific section to which they relate. He stated that 
also, there are several sections that have been reviewed by the Committees but not adopted 
with regard to hazardous materials regulations, ergonomics, and the self-inspection program, all 



 

of which are mandated to be in the Town’s safety policy. Councilman Jones noted that in 
summary, the changes the Committee just described to the safety policy are merely to make it 
more readable and to insert current national standards. He indicated there are two additional 
amendments that are proposed in the Personnel Ordinance. Councilman Jones explained that 
the first amendment deals with those days where there is inclement weather, and employees 
may potentially have trouble getting to work. He stated that under the current policy, employees 
who are late because of weather conditions do not have to repay the missed time. Councilman 
Jones stated the Committee is suggesting the policy be amended to the extent that it allows a 
one-hour grace period in which the employee must be at work. He pointed out if the employee is 
tardy more than one hour, then vacation time in one-quarter day increments must be used. 
Councilman Jones remarked that the second amendment is in regard to Worker’s 
Compensation and provides that an employee can reimburse the Town for any annual or sick 
leave days used as provided in the ordinance if they so desire. He stated it also provides that 
time off for a Worker’s Compensation claim will be charged to Family Medical Leave. 
Councilman Jones advised if Council concurs with these amendments, the Committee will 
present an ordinance to reflect these amendments at the February 23rd meeting. Mayor Crewe 
noted he would assume there are no strong objections at this point. Councilman Crockett stated 
he has one question, but advised it is not necessarily an objection, etc. He indicated it is on the 
last sentence on Page 1 where it notes if the employee is tardy more than one hour. 
Councilman Crockett stated he would assume then that if an employee reports one hour and 
one minute late, he is charged for two hours leave time. Councilman Crockett inquired if the 
Town is strictly looking at this type of enforcement. Town Manager Sutherland explained that 
what would happen is that, for example, if it the employee was one hour and 15 minutes late, 
he/she would charge two hours to vacation time, and then would have 45 minutes 
compensatory time, and inquired of Town Clerk Hackler if this is the way it will be handled. 
Town Clerk Hackler stated that is correct, and advised that it would have to be up to 15 minutes 
before the two hours vacation time would be used. Councilman Crockett indicated he was 
wondering if the Town is really stating that in these regulations and wording that way. Mayor 
Crewe stated that is what the Council thinks they would be stating. Councilman Jones inquired if 
the Public Works Committee will be discussing this at their meeting in the morning. Town Clerk 
Hackler advised that the Public Works Committee discussed this at their meeting last week. 
Councilman Crockett noted when he was reading this, he did not interpret it quite the way that 
Town Clerk Hackler described it. He stated that possibly he missed something at the Committee 
meeting, and advised he does not remember the issue about the 45 minutes being discussed, 
and possibly it did and possibly his memory is failing. Mayor Crewe remarked that usually the 
Town counts time in quarter hour increments, and inquired if 15 minutes is the lowest time that 
is counted. Town Clerk Hackler advised that is correct and remarked that if the time is over 15 
minutes, the Town would take the time up 15 more minutes to one half hour. She noted if it is 
five minutes, it is not counted. Mayor Crewe noted there is one hour and 14 minutes grace time, 
and if the person is on the 15th minute, they will receive 45 minutes compensatory time. Town 
Manager Sutherland advised that the sentence should probably have read if the employee is 
tardy more than one hour and 14 minutes. Councilman Crockett stated the Council members 
may want to review this matter again, possibly in Committee meetings. Mayor Crewe noted this 
is something the Committee can take up when they propose the wording of the amendment. He 
stated he believes the Council, the way he reads it, concurs with these suggestions, and they 
will look forward to receiving this proposed ordinance when it is drafted.   
 
Councilman Jones also reported that Town Treasurer Stephens met with the Committee last 
week and reviewed certain taxes that need to be written off of the Town’s books. He advised 
that State law Section 58.1-3940 requires treasurers to remove from their books certain 
delinquent taxes after they have been delinquent for a certain number of years. Councilman 
Jones indicated that the taxes proposed to be written off are for 1983 Real Estate Taxes totaling 
$58.80, for 1983 Mowing Assessments equaling $155.00, 1998 Personal Property/Mobile Home 
Taxes which total $1,295.76, and for certain Annual Maintenance Invoices between the period 
of 1992 and 1998 valued at $120.50. He stated it would be the recommendation of the Budget 
and Finance Committee that the Council authorize Town Treasurer Mike Stephens to take the 
appropriate actions to remove these delinquent taxes from his books. A motion was made by 
Councilman Jones and seconded by Vice-Mayor King to authorize Town Treasurer Mike 
Stephens to remove certain delinquent taxes from his books which include 1983 Real Estate 
Taxes totaling $58.80, 1983 Mowing Assessments equaling $155.00, 1998 Personal 
Property/Mobile Home Taxes which total $1,295.76, and certain Annual Maintenance Invoices 
between the period of 1992 and 1998 valued at $120.50. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any 
discussion on the motion. Councilman Crockett inquired as to when is the normal timeframe. He 
advised he noticed that dates are 1983 and between 1992 and 1998. Councilman Crockett 
inquired as to the timeframe that the Town has to do this. Town Manager Sutherland advised 
that both of these timeframes are for 20 years and this is for the taxes, and the last one called 
Annual Maintenance Invoices is for West End Cemetery when in the 1950s, people purchasing 
spaces had the option to either pay a lump sum maintenance fee or they could pay it monthly or 



 

annually. He explained that the people who chose to pay the fees annually had been invoiced 
for years and years, and some have passed away, etc. Mayor Crewe remarked if he remembers 
correctly, the invoices that are on this list came back as non-deliverable, and the Town does not 
know what happened to them. Town Manager Sutherland remarked that the amount of $120.50 
is the amount the Treasurer has been trying to collect for years, and it needs to be written off. 
Councilman Crockett advised he knows the Council has gone through this almost every year of 
writing off some amounts, and indicated he would have thought that taxes for 1983 would have 
already been written off by this time. Town Manager Sutherland remarked that the 1983 taxes 
could not be written off before this time because it takes 20 years for these to be written off. 
Mayor Crewe pointed out that the taxes are collectible for 20 years. Councilman Crockett 
remarked that on the real estate taxes for the period from 1992 to 1998, apparently, this 
timeframe is four or five years.  Mayor Crewe indicated that this timeframe is not for the real 
estate taxes, but it is for the cemetery maintenance invoices for the timeframe from 1992 to 
1998. Town Manager Sutherland advised that is correct. Mayor Crewe explained that there are 
three categories including real estate taxes for 1983 in the amount of $58.80, which are 20 
years old. He noted the mowing assessments from 1983 are $155.00, which are 20 years old. 
He advised that the 1998 personal property/mobile home taxes are for five years, and this 
amount is $1,295.76, and the annual maintenance invoices are for six years between the period 
of 1992 and 1998, and noted the Town cannot find anyone to collect this from, and are in the 
amount of $120.50. Mayor Crewe noted the mowing assessments are akin to real estate taxes 
because it is for assessments against the real estate. Councilman Crockett noted it is for two 
different timeframes. Mayor Crewe stated that is correct and noted the personal property tax is 
for five years, and the real estate tax is for 20 years. He inquired if there is any other discussion 
on the motion. There being none, the motion was approved with the following voting in favor and 
there being no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., 
William B. Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett. Against: None. A copy of the Budget and Finance 
Committee report is attached and made part of these minutes. (Attachment). 
 
RE: PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Councilman Weisiger, reporting for the Public Works Committee, stated the State Division of 
Waste Management has mandated that all communities in Virginia will update their solid waste 
management programs. He noted the reported purpose of this update is to offer each locality 
the opportunity to create a long-term vision for its solid waste management programs. 
Councilman Weisiger stated the plans must include a considerable amount of detail and serve 
as a roadmap for handling solid waste into the future. He advised it also addresses recycling 
efforts, points of disposal, transportation of solid waste, and a variety of other issues. 
Councilman Weisiger remarked that the plan the Town is currently utilizing was developed 
jointly with Wythe County. He noted all of the communities in this region recently met at the 
Mount Rogers Planning District Commission office and discussed the potential for the 
development of a regional solid waste management plan. Councilman Weisiger advised that it 
appears the localities can develop a plan as a region at considerably less cost than if each 
locality individually retained engineering firms to prepare these reports. He stated the Town has 
discussed this again with Wythe County and they agree some type of joint effort would be 
beneficial to everyone. Councilman Weisiger noted the Mount Rogers Planning District 
Commission has solicited proposals from engineering firms who are capable of preparing the 
report for the region. He stated at this point, the Committee does not know the exact expenses 
that will be involved in the report’s preparation, but does know it will be considerably less than if 
the Town retains an engineering firm and has its own solid waste management plan developed. 
Councilman Weisiger stated that as such, it is the recommendation of the Public Works 
Committee that the Town join with Wythe County and other localities within the Mount Rogers 
Planning District Commission to develop a regional solid waste management plan. Mayor 
Crewe noted it is his understanding from the Budget and Finance Committee meeting on 
Thursday that they are in concurrence with this recommendation. He stated since he hears no 
objection, the Town will proceed to join with Wythe County and other localities within the Mount 
Rogers Planning District Commission to develop a regional solid waste management plan.  
 
Councilman Weisiger also reported that the Virginia Department of Transportation has given 
notice that they will be conducting a series of meetings, called Scoping Meetings, as the kickoff 
to the I-81 Corridor Improvement Study now underway by the Federal Highway Administration 
and the Virginia Department of Transportation. He stated that according to information the Town 
has received, this study will identify deficiencies along the interstate as well as opportunities for 
improvements throughout the corridor in Virginia. Councilman Weisiger noted the Virginia 
Department of Transportation advises that this meeting will give citizens an opportunity to make 
inquiries as well as offer suggestions to the Department. He noted the Public Scoping Meeting 
for the Wytheville area will be held at the Ramada Inn on February 10, 2004, between the hours 
of 4:00 and 8:00 p.m. Councilman Weisiger stated that certainly, the Council will want the Town 
represented at this meeting, but, also, would encourage citizens to attend and participate in this 



 

important activity. A copy of the Public Works Committee report is attached and made part of 
these minutes. (Attachment). 
 
RE: APPOINTMENTS – PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
Mayor Crewe stated the next agenda item is the notification of appointments to the Planning 
Commission to fill the expiring terms of Mr. William Bondurant and Dr. William F. Snyder whose 
terms expire March 2, 2004. He advised that Mr. Bondurant is not eligible for reappointment, so 
for anyone who has any interest in serving on the Planning Commission, the Council would 
appreciate him/her filling out an application so it can be considered. He noted unless someone 
has an application or knows someone who can be appointed that the Council can take action on 
at this meeting, the Council will consider these appointments at the next meeting. 
 
RE: APPOINTMENT - BOARD OF ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW 
 
Mayor Crewe stated the next agenda item is the notification of appointment to the Board of 
Architectural Review to fill the expiring term of Mrs. Tracy Holliday whose term expires February 
27, 2004. He explained that Mrs. Holliday is not eligible for reappointment, and the new person 
who would be appointed would have to be a property owner in the downtown district. He 
advised that, again, if anyone is interested in serving on this board, he/she needs to complete 
an application and make the Council aware of this interest so he/she can be considered for 
appointment.  
 
RE:  APPOINTMENT – WALL OF HONOR COMMITTEE 
 
Mayor Crewe stated the next agenda item is the consideration of the reappointment of Mr. Don 
Lawson to the Wall of Honor Committee, and noted that Mr. Lawson’s term expired February 1, 
2004. He noted that Mr. Lawson is eligible for reappointment, and the Council will see in their 
information packet that the American Legion Post #9 and the Wall of Honor Committee have 
recommended that Mr. Lawson be reappointed to the Wall of Honor Committee. A motion was 
made by Vice-Mayor King and seconded by Councilman Jones to reappoint Mr. Don Lawson to 
the Wall of Honor Committee. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on the motion. 
There being none, the motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being 
no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. 
Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett. Against: None.  
 
Mayor Crewe advised if anyone is interested in serving on the Planning Commission or the 
Board of Architectural Review, they should make their interest known to the Town Council so 
they can be considered for appointment at the next meeting. 
 
RE: ORDINANCE NO. 1166 – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 
 
Mayor Crewe presented Ordinance No. 1166, an ordinance amending and reenacting 
Ordinance No. 640, the Town of Wytheville Zoning Ordinance, Section XIX, Planned Unit 
Development, Subsections 19-5 and 19-15.1, on second reading. He advised that as the 
Council will recall, this ordinance was before the Council at the last meeting, and it passed on 
first reading. Mayor Crewe noted this ordinance changes the planned unit development 
ordinance in regard to the bond that has to be posted. He indicated that the Council has some 
concerns, and this ordinance was tabled at the January 12 meeting and laid on the table until 
the last meeting. Mayor Crewe noted that at the last meeting, the Council adopted the ordinance 
on first, but not final, reading. He stated the Council has before them at this meeting the 
changes that Town Attorney Kaase has inserted into the language that would address the 
concerns the Council raised about making the bond applicable to subsequent developers, etc. 
Mayor Crewe indicated that the Council has several options including amending the ordinance 
and proceeding this way, adopting it on final reading, or adopting the ordinance on second 
reading as amended. He advised that the Council can proceed with this ordinance however they 
desire. A motion was made by Councilman Crockett to adopt Ordinance No. 1166, an ordinance 
amending and reenacting Ordinance No. 640, the Town of Wytheville Zoning Ordinance, 
Section XIX, Planned Unit Development, Subsections 19-5 and 19-15.1, on second, but not final 
reading as amended. The motion was seconded by Councilman Jones. Mayor Crewe inquired if 
there is any discussion on the motion. Councilman Crockett remarked that he thinks these 
revisions answer all of the questions or concerns he had on the issue. Town Attorney Kaase 
advised that he tried to address these concerns. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any other 
discussion on the motion. There being none, the motion was approved with the following voting 
in favor and there being no opposition: 
 
FOR: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., 

William B. Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett 



 

AGAINST:   None 
 
ABSTENTIONS:  None 
 
Ordinance No. 1166 was adopted on second, but not final, reading.  
 
RE: ORDINANCE NO. 1167 – NONCONFORMING STRUCTURES 
 
Mayor Crewe presented Ordinance No. 1167, an ordinance amending and reenacting 
Ordinance 640, the Town of Wytheville Zoning Ordinance, Article VII-Residential District R-2 
and Article VIII-Residential District R-3, regarding an amended side yard setback for 
nonconforming structures on developed lots platted prior to 1969, on first reading. He noted this 
ordinance was the subject of the public hearing held earlier in the meeting. Mayor Crewe stated 
he did not see anyone else come into the meeting and no one made any comments during the 
public hearing. He advised his understanding also is that no one made any comments during 
the public hearing held by the Planning Commission. Mayor Crewe noted the Council has the 
recommendation from the Planning Commission in front of them. He stated the ordinance is 
before the Council on first reading, and they could consider it however they desired. Mayor 
Crewe explained that the ordinance would relax the side yard requirements for nonconforming 
structures on developed lots that were platted prior to 1969 when the Zoning Ordinance went 
into effect. A motion was made by Councilman Jones and seconded by Councilman Weisiger to 
suspend the rules and adopt Ordinance No. 1167, an ordinance amending and reenacting 
Ordinance 640, the Town of Wytheville Zoning Ordinance, Article VII-Residential District R-2 
and Article VIII-Residential District R-3, regarding an amended side yard setback for 
nonconforming structures on developed lots platted prior to 1969, on first and final reading. 
Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on the motion. Councilman Crockett stated he 
has several questions. He noted in Paragraph 7-9.1, the last sentence, and advised it is the 
same for both sections, states, “In no case shall the side yard be decreased from its present 
width by an addition.” Councilman Crocket inquired of Councilman Jones as to how this works. 
Town Manager Sutherland interjected that Assistant Town Manager Moore has a sketch of this 
situation. Mayor Crewe stated the addition cannot occupy the entire space between the 
structure and the side property line. Assistant Town Manager Moore presented a sketch 
depicting such a situation, and noted the Planning Commission used this sketch during their 
meeting. He explained what it states is if the present side yard is six feet, the addition has to 
keep this same setback, and this is what this sentence intends. Mayor Crewe remarked that in 
the diagram, for example, there is a six-foot side yard, and noted the present ordinance requires 
12 feet and inquired if that is correct. Assistant Town Manager Moore noted that is correct. 
Mayor Crewe noted that Town staff has 12 feet marked on the sketch, which would be under the 
existing ordinance, and the addition could be six feet further over. He noted if the Council 
adopts this ordinance, it would allow the addition to come out six feet, but no further, and the 
addition would match the side line of the house, but it could not shrink the yard. Assistant Town 
Manager Moore noted the side yard could be five feet and not six feet. Councilman Crockett 
inquired if the person has an existing residence that is five feet from the property line, it would 
be grandfathered in, and inquired if this is true. Assistant Town Manager Moore noted that is 
correct and advised there are a number of cases of this nature. Councilman Crockett inquired if 
in this particular case if the six feet would apply, or would there have to be a special exception 
to allow them to tie on at five feet, for example, to continue the line of the existing structure on 
the additional structure. Town Manager Sutherland indicated this is what this ordinance would 
be addressing and noted that the new structure could be five feet from the property line. Mr. 
Moore advised that new structure could be five feet from the existing property line, but if the 
existing structure is setback at six feet, the side yard would have to remain six feet. Councilman 
Crockett stated the property owner could continue the line, and if the existing structure is within 
five feet of the property line, the addition could be within five feet of the property line and 
inquired if that is correct. Assistant Town Manager Moore noted that is correct. Mayor Crewe 
advised that the addition could not be within four feet of the property line if the existing property 
was four feet from the property line, and a person cannot add to the structure to keep it straight 
all of the way back four feet. Assistant Town Manager Moore stated, for example, if the existing 
house was on the property line, then the addition would have to be set back no less than five 
feet. He noted this is what this paragraph intends. Mayor Crewe advised if he is understanding 
Councilman Crockett’s question, the way he would interpret the answer is a new addition under 
the proposal before the Council could be no closer than five feet to the side yard property line or 
even with the house if it is more than five feet and inquired if this answered Councilman 
Crockett’s question. Councilman Crockett noted that this explanation answered his question. 
Mayor Crewe inquired if there are any other comments or discussion. Ms. Kaylor inquired if 
there is a statute of limitations on existing structures. Mayor Crewe inquired as to what manner 
of statute of limitations that Ms. Kaylor is inquiring. Ms. Kaylor noted she was inquiring about an 
existing carport. Mayor Crewe advised that there is no, and noted Town Attorney Kaase can 
also answer if he states something incorrectly, statute of limitations, per se, but if a person had 



 

a carport sitting closer to the line in 1969 when the Zoning Ordinance went into effect, if the 
carport was closer to the property line than the Zoning Ordinance allowed when it went into 
effect after the structure was built, the usual clause is it would be grandfathered. He explained 
that the Town cannot make a person tear down his/her garage to move it because it is too close 
to the property line, but the Town could prevent the person from rebuilding it if something 
happened to that garage or adding on to it. Mayor Crewe inquired of Assistant Town Manager 
Moore, Town Manager Sutherland, and Town Attorney Kaase if he is interpreting that correctly. 
Town Manager Sutherland stated that Assistant Town Manager Moore may want to comment 
on the last sentence in Section 7-9.2. Mayor Crewe noted that the Council is differentiating 
between a carport and a garage. He indicated that Ms. Kaylor’s concern is a carport as opposed 
to a garage if he understands correctly. Ms. Kaylor noted the carport has been in existence for 
over two years. Mayor Crewe remarked that the last line of the one section states, “Carports or 
other open structures may be permitted in the side yards when the compliance with the Building 
Code and the setbacks above may be achieved.” He explained that a carport would be slightly 
different than a full garage because it is an open structure and it is listed by the carport. Mayor 
Crewe indicated that this is what Town Manager Sutherland is addressing. Town Manager 
Sutherland stated that is correct and noted he knows when the Kaylors had this situation with 
this carport, and indicated he is unaware if this ordinance will help with the Kaylors’ situation or 
not. He explained that he is unsure of how the carport is situated on the property. Ms. Kaylor 
noted the carport is in the side yard. Town Manager Sutherland noted that is correct. Mayor 
Crewe inquired if the carport is sitting closer than five feet to the side yard line. Ms. Kaylor 
indicated that she did not think the carport is sitting closer than five feet to the property line. 
Mayor Crewe remarked that if the carport is not within five feet of the side yard line, this 
amendment would permit the carport. He pointed out if the carport is closer than five feet to the 
property line, this amendment would not permit the carport. Assistant Town Manager Moore 
noted that the carport must be at least five feet from the lot line. Town Manager Sutherland 
noted he thinks if this ordinance is approved, Town staff will need to work with the Kaylors next 
week. The Kaylors advised that would be acceptable. Mayor Crewe noted he is aware that the 
Kaylors have a special situation, and this would at least, in part, address the situation. He 
advised he is unsure if this ordinance will address all of the situation or not. Mayor Crewe 
inquired if there are any further questions, discussion, or comments. There being none, the 
motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition:  
 
FOR: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., 

William B. Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett 
 
AGAINST:   None 
 
ABSTENTIONS:  None 
 
Ordinance No. 1167 was adopted on first and final reading. Mayor Crewe noted this ordinance 
will become effective immediately. 
 
RE: RESOLUTION – TOWN OF WYTHEVILLE GAS STATION MUSEUM AND WALKING 
TRAIL PROJECT 
 
Mayor Crewe stated the next agenda item is the consideration of a resolution requesting the 
Commonwealth Transportation Board to establish a project for the improvement of the Town of 
Wytheville Gas Station Museum and Walking Trail Project. He noted this will be Federal funds, 
but they are coming through the Commonwealth Transportation Board. Mayor Crewe remarked 
that the Commonwealth Transportation Board requires that the Town request the project by way 
of a resolution. He noted the Council has the resolution before them. A motion was made by 
Councilman Jones and seconded by Vice-Mayor King to adopt the resolution requesting the 
Commonwealth Transportation Board to establish a project for the improvement of the Town of 
Wytheville Gas Station Museum and Walking Trail Project. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any 
discussion on the motion. Councilman Crockett noted the Council states in the last paragraph 
that the Town of Wytheville agrees to pay a minimum of 20 percent of the total cost of planning 
and design and right of way cost. He inquired how the minimum 20 percent actually converts to 
dollars and budget items. Mayor Crewe answered that it depends on how much the grant turns 
out to be. Assistant Town Manager Moore explained that for this particular project,  the amount 
would be in the range of about $30,000, and this would be 20 percent of the application since it 
was $150,000 that the Town applied for, and 20 percent of this would be $30,000. Councilman 
Crockett advised that the resolution states a minimum of 20 percent. Assistant Town Manager 
Moore noted the Council would be committing a minimum of 20 percent. Mayor Crewe 
explained that the other side of this matter is since the Town has already started, it could pay 
100 percent if it does not receive any grant funds. He noted the Town is trying to receive up to 
80 percent of Federal funds, which is the maximum amount the Town can apply for. Councilman 
Crockett stated he was trying to interpret how the Town could come up with a minimum figure. 



 

Mayor Crewe remarked that this is the terms of the grant, and it is a 20 percent match. 
Councilman Crockett stated he can see, again, how this would convert to dollars, and noted that 
Assistant Town Manager Moore has advised it is $30,000. Assistant Town Manager Moore 
noted the amount applied for was $150,000. Councilman Crockett noted that 20 percent would 
be $30,000. He inquired if they did not fund but $100,000, how far beyond that amount is the 
Town willing to go. Mayor Crewe stated that according to earlier actions by the Council, he 
would state the Council is willing to pay $50,000. Councilman Crockett noted the Town may 
have to pay the entire amount. Mayor Crewe explained that the Council is on record as going 
forward with $150,000. Assistant Town Manager Moore pointed out that the Council has the 
right to refuse the funds. Councilman Crockett indicated that he was trying to figure out from the 
taxpayers’ standpoint as to what kind of impact this ends up having if the Federal government, 
or whatever agency it is, decided they were going to pay $10,000. He noted this is quite a bit of 
difference between $30,000 and $140,000, etc. Mayor Crewe stated it could potentially provide 
the Town with $120,000, but the Town does not know this until they apply and see what type of 
reaction they receive and what the response is. He inquired if there is any other discussion on 
the motion. There being none, the motion was approved with the following voting in favor and 
there being no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., 
William B. Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett. Against: None.  
 
RE: CERTIFICATE OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY 
  
Mayor Crewe stated the next agenda item is scheduling a public hearing to consider issuing a 
Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity during 2004 for Wytheville Taxi Service for the 
operation of taxicabs. He indicated that unless someone objects, the Council can meet the 
required advertising deadlines and hold the public hearing at 7:00 p.m. on March 8, 2004. 
Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any objection to setting the public hearing at 7:00 p.m. on 
March 8, 2004. There being no objections, it was the consensus of the Town Council to set a 
public hearing at 7:00 p.m. on March 8, 2004, to consider issuing a Certificate of Public 
Convenience and Necessity during 2004 for Wytheville Taxi Service for the operation of 
taxicabs.  
 
RE: WALL OF HONOR CIVIC MONUMENT HONOREE  
 
Mayor Crewe stated the next agenda item is the consideration of the recommendation of the 
Wall of Honor Committee regarding an honoree to the Civic Monument. He noted the 
Committee has recommended that the name of George T. Johnstone be approved and placed 
on the Civic Monument. A motion was made by Councilman Crockett and seconded by Vice-
Mayor King to approve the recommendation of the Wall of Honor Committee to place the name 
of George T. Johnstone on the Civic Monument. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion 
on the motion. There being none, the motion was approved with the following voting in favor and 
there being no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., 
William B. Weisiger, Charles G. Crockett. Against: None.  
 
RE: ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to be discussed, a motion was duly made, seconded, and 
carried to adjourn the meeting (7:35 p.m.). 
 
 
            

 Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Mayor 
 
 
        
Sharon P. Hackler, CMC, Clerk of Council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\COUNCIL\Minutes\2004\Council Minutes 020904.doc 



 
 1 

  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE REPORT  
 
 FEBRUARY 23, 2004 
 

 

1. The Crossroads Regional Industrial Facility Authority took action last week to seek 

grant funds for the installation of water and sewer facilities for the south side of 

Progress Park. Grant funds will be sought from the Virginia Tobacco Commission, the 

Department of Housing and Community Development, and the Mount Rogers Planning 

District Commission. Grant funds in the amount of $541,000 will be requested from the 

Tobacco Commission, $300,000 from the Department of Housing and Community 

Development, and approximately $80,000 from the Mount Rogers Planning District 

Commission. The total cost for the installation of both water and sewer to the south 

side of the park is approximately $1.6 million. The water line project, in which the Town 

will participate, will involve the extension of a 20-inch water line from a point near the 

Edgemont Center eastwardly to the corporate limit line. This 20-inch line will connect 

with the County’s water system at this point. A new line will then be extended 

northward to the south side of Progress Park. The County will be providing sewer 

service to the south side of Progress Park, and their project will involve installation of a 

pump station and certain sewer lines. 

 

 This project coordinates very well with the ongoing efforts of the Town, Wythe County, 

and Carroll County to create a regional water system. The 20-inch line that we 

described, going from the Edgemont Center to the corporate limits, had already been 



 
 2 

planned, and an extension to the south side of Progress Park will enhance the Joint 

Industrial Development Authority’s efforts in locating new industrial prospects on this 

property. 

 

 There is no action needed by the Council, but we did want to provide the Council with 

an update on these funding efforts. 

 

2. Joint Industrial Development Authority Executive Director Alan Hawthorne made a 

presentation to our Committee last week giving us an overview of certain economic 

conditions and trends in Wytheville and Wythe County. The presentation had a variety 

of statistical data concerning employment and wages for our area. The employment 

data illustrated that the types of jobs available in Wythe County are quite diversified. 

Employment opportunities in Wythe County can be described in thirteen broad 

categories. Interestingly, the total number of positions available is relatively equal with 

only two sectors, retail trade and manufacturing, achieving double digit percentages. 

These two sectors also generate the largest amounts of payroll within the County. Dr. 

Hawthorne also presented several graphs noting unemployment levels in Wythe 

County as compared to our region, the state, and the total United States. Our 

unemployment rates have mirrored those seen throughout the state, but indicate that 

the growth in employment that we have seen in the past year has been significant as 

compared to the state and our region. Expansions that were announced in 2003 by 

Wytheville Technologies, Musser Lumber, Fuel Systems, and Dalton Enterprises 

created 220 new jobs. This does not reflect the previous announcements made by the 



 
 3 

Pepsi Bottling Group and Klockner. 

 

 We found his presentation interesting and enlightening and note that it is available for 

review by the Council or citizens. We think it does indicate that the efforts of Wythe 

County and Wytheville to create job opportunities have been effective, and it appears 

that they will continue to bring good jobs to our citizens. 

 

 

                      
               William B. Weisiger 

 
 
                                           

             Charles G. Crockett     
 
H:\COUNCIL\PWCOMMIT.RPT\2004\PWFEB23.doc 


